
Meeting of:  Health and Wellbeing Board
Date: Tuesday, 8th January, 2019
Time: 2.00 pm.
Venue: Hollingworth (Room 108ABC) - Number One 

Riverside

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3.  MINUTES 3 - 7

For the Board to approve the Minutes of the meeting held on the 27th 
March 2018.

4.  OUTCOME PAPER 8 - 23

For the Board to receive a report from the Public Health Specialist on 
adopting an Outcomes Based Framework. 

5.  HEALTHWATCH UPDATE 

The Board will receive an update on the work of Healthwatch.

6.  GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING BOARD 

For the Board to receive from the Director for Public Health and 
Wellbeing a summary of the outcomes of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board Governance workshop held on the 23rd November 2018.

Public Document Pack



Health and Wellbeing Board Members

Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Dr Bodrul Alam
Jon Aspinall Rob Bellingham
Councillor Ashley Dearnley Dr Chris Duffy
Andrea Fallon Councillor Kieran Heakin
Gail Hopper Jane Jackson
Councillor Sara Rowbotham John Paul Ruffle
Steve Rumbelow Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Susan Smith Janette Stott
Steve Taylor Keith Walker
Michelle Warburton

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
John Addison

01706 924715
john.addison@rochdale.gov.uk



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 27th March 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Rowbotham (in the Chair); Councillor Heakin, Steve 
Rumbelow, Gail Hopper, Andrea Fallon (Rochdale Borough Council), Dr Chris 
Duffy (HMR CCG), Chief Inspector John-Paul Ruddle (Greater Manchester 
Police) and Jane Jackson (HealthWatch Rochdale)

OFFICERS: W. Meston, A. Threlfall, E. Wilson (Public Health and Wellbeing 
Directorate), P. Thompson (Resources Directorate) 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  R. McDonald, L. Newsham (HMR CCG) and 
Councillor Sheerin.

APOLOGIES
59 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed, 
Councillor Dearnley (Rochdale Borough Council), Dr Bodrul Alam, Simon 
Wootton (Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale NHS CCG), Steve Taylor (Local 
Care Organisation) and Jon Aspinall (Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue 
Service).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
60 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
61 Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board, held 18th 
July 2018, be approved as a correct record.

ROCHDALE PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2018 - 2021
62 The Health and Wellbeing Board considered a report of the Director of 
Public Health, the purpose of which was to share the final Pharmaceutical 
Needs Assessment (PNA) report with the Health and Wellbeing Board 
members for approval and sign off.

The PNA 2018-2021 has been developed by NHS Greater Manchester 
Shared Services using a standard methodology in accordance with the 
requirements set out in regulations 3 – 9, Schedule 1 of the NHS 
(Pharmaceutical Services and Local Pharmaceutical Service) Regulations 
2013 as follows:

a. To inform NHS England when making decisions on applications to 
open new pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises; or 
applications from current pharmaceutical providers to change their existing 
regulatory requirements.
b. To help the Health and Wellbeing Board to work with providers to target 
services to the areas where they are needed and limit duplication of services 
in areas where provision is adequate.

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



c. To inform interested parties of the pharmaceutical needs in the 
Rochdale borough and enable work to plan, develop and deliver 
pharmaceutical services for the population.
d. To inform commissioning decisions by local commissioning bodies 
including local authorities’ (public health services), NHS England, and Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs). 

In the process of undertaking the PNA, the views of a wide range of key 
stakeholders were obtained to identify issues that affect the commissioning of 
pharmaceutical services and to meet local health needs and priorities.

Decision:
1. The Health and Wellbeing Board approves and signs off the Rochdale 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2018 – 2021;

2. The Health and Wellbeing Board agrees to the publication of the 
Rochdale Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2018 - 2021 document: 
to be published on the Council’s website.

HEALTH PROTECTION UPDATE
63 The Board considered a report of the Director of Public Health and 
Wellbeing that detailed work being carried out by the Rochdale Borough 
Health Protection Working Group on working arrangements, performance and 
local action.

Health protection sought to prevent or reduce harm caused by communicable 
and infectious diseases, to ensure effective infection prevention and control, 
to minimize the health impact from environmental, chemical, radiation hazards 
and extreme weather events. There was also an aspiration to ensure excellent 
screening and immunization programmes to prevent or detect diseases and to 
ensure that the public’s health was protected in the event of an emergency 
situation.

The Board was assured that major programmes such as the national 
immunisation and screening programmes, the provision of health services to 
diagnose and treat infectious diseases were in place alongside a robust 
partnership approach to planning, surveillance and response to incidents and 
outbreaks. 

Local authorities (and their Statutory Director of Public Health acting on their 
behalf) had a critical role in protecting the health of their population, both in 
terms of helping to prevent threats arising and in ensuring appropriate 
responses when things go wrong. Across the partnership appropriate 
specialist health protection skills are available to carry out these functions. 
HMR CCG and local NHS organisations have responsibilities for health 
protection and emergency planning. 

Decision:
1. The report be noted 
2. Delegated authority be granted to the Director of Public Health and 

Wellbeing to amend the Health Protection Group’s working 

Page 4



arrangements and performance targets and to authorise appropriate 
local action.

Reason for the decision:
The purpose of the report was to outline action that had been taken to protect 
the health of residents in 2017 and to update and assure the Board of local 
health protection arrangements and activity.

DECLARATION OF HEALTHY WEIGHT AND CHILDHOOD OBESITY 
ACTION PLAN
64 The Health and Wellbeing Board were reminded that the Council, at its 
meeting on 11th October 2017, passed a Motion that signalled the authority’s 
intention to lead local action to prevent obesity and the opportunity to protect 
some of the most vulnerable in society by giving children the best start in life 
and enabling all children, young people and families to make informed 
choices. Rochdale Council supported the national commitment to address 
childhood obesity and committed the Council to sign the Declaration on 
Healthy Weight to show commitment to reducing unhealthy weight in our 
communities, protecting the health and well-being of staff and citizens and 
make an economic impact on healthy and social care and the local economy. 
A similar commitment was adopted by Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale 
CCG at their meeting held on 19th January 2018.

Both the Council and the CCG were taking practical steps to address this 
issue. Rochdale Borough Council’s Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate 
had established an Obesity Action Group to address the key issues relating to 
obesity including sugar consumption, calorie intake, the promotion of healthy 
eating, making healthier foods more available and regular exercise. The 
Obesity Action Group involved key stakeholders, from within the Council 
(including elected members of the Council) and from the Council’s partners.

Decision:
That the update relating to the declaration of healthy Weight be noted.

CAMHS LOCAL TRANSFORMATION PLAN
65 The Director of Public Health and Wellbeing advised the Board that 
Rochdale Borough’s CAMHS Local Transformation Plan (LTP) had been 
developed in 2015/16 setting out the borough’s plans to improve and enhance 
the emotional and mental health support for the Borough’s children and young 
people.  Nationally, there was a requirement to refresh the plans on an annual 
basis.  The CAMHS LTP was refreshed and agreed by the Health and 
Wellbeing Board in March 2017 and it had recently been refreshed for 2018.  
Refreshed plans must be signed off by the Health and Wellbeing Board prior 
to the document being published by 31st March 2018.

The Health and Wellbeing Board was advised that the key priorities within the 
plan have already been approved in previous versions.  Further details of 
these priorities and progress to date were included in the refreshed version, 
including priorities that will be undertaken on a Greater Manchester basis.  

Page 5



Decision:
The Health and Wellbeing Board formally approves the refreshed CAMHS 
Local Transformation Plan for 2018/19.

Reasons for the decision:
The document circulated to Board members was a refreshed version of a plan 
that had previously been approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board.  There 
is also a national requirement for CAMHS LTPs to be approved by Health and 
Wellbeing Boards and this was monitored annually by the national team.  

JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT
66 The Director of Public Health submitted a report that provided a 
summary of some of the findings from the Borough’s Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA). The complete JSNA would be developed as webpages 
that could be updated and browsed. 

The JSNA was a tool that described and helped understanding of the needs 
and resources of the Borough’s population. It can be used in different ways. 
One important use is for planning services to meet the needs of our residents 
and communities. Another was to help develop ways to improve health and 
wellbeing. Another was to help prevent illness, accidents or harm. The JSNA 
is an ongoing story about how the population is made up, how healthy it is and 
the resources people have to help them stay healthy. To inform the JSNA 
information is gathered from local professionals, services, statistics and local 
people. The aim is to have an accurate understanding of previous patterns, 
current need and use this to predict future needs. It is therefore an ongoing 
process of understanding the population rather than a fixed state.
 
In terms of wellbeing, a wellbeing approach was seen as central to how the 
Borough can tackle needs that have been identified. Wellbeing is about 
practical welfare, relationships and ‘mind and body’ feelings. People tend to 
use fewer services and are generally healthier if they have good wellbeing. 
Here wellbeing covers taking charges of life and health. Wellbeing is also 
about what people can do and be, going beyond the material.

The JSNA also examines life course and much of the JSNA is presented in 
relation to a life course from ‘cradle to grave’. A life-course approach was 
described as aiming to increase the effectiveness of interventions throughout 
a person’s life, focusing on a healthy start to life and targets the needs of 
people at critical periods throughout their lifetime. Life course promotes timely 
investments with a high rate of return for health and the economy by 
addressing the causes, as well as the consequences, of ill health. For many, 
the critical periods of their life occur during transition phases from one part of 
their life to another. These include first going to school, entering the workplace 
and retirement. 

The Board discussed the document in some detail, commending its aims and 
aspirations and requesting clarification on a number of issues contained 
therein. These included the role of General Practitioners, noting the large 
number of unnecessary presentations at the hospital’s accident and 

Page 6



emergency unit. Mental Health was also an issue that prompted much 
discussion and it was noted that this was referenced on multiple occasions in 
the JSNA document. It was noted (in the Mortality and Illness Section) that life 
expectancy in the Rochdale Borough was ‘levelling off’ and it was suggested 
that a report be submitted to a future meeting analysing the fall in life 
expectancy in the Borough. 

Decision:
1. That the report be noted and welcomed.
2. That the Director of Public Health and Wellbeing be requested to 

submit a report to a future meeting of the Board that outlines the 
Borough’s Health and Wellbeing  Strategy, including details of 
programmes to impact upon healthy life expectancy and mental 
wellbeing and resilience.

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
67 Decision:
That consideration of this item of business be deferred to an informal session 
of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s membership to be held at a date to be 
determined ahead of the next scheduled meeting on 5th June 2018. 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - FUTURE ARRANGEMENTS
68 Decision:
That consideration of this item of business be deferred to an informal session 
of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s membership to be held at a date to be 
determined ahead of the next scheduled meeting on 5th June 2018. 

Page 7



Page 1 of 6

                                                 

 
Adopting an 

Outcomes Based Framework 
(achieving our shared goals in Rochdale Borough)

Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale 
Clinical Commissioning Group 

&
Rochdale Borough Council (Commissioning)

(2019 / 2022).

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



Page 2 of 6

 
1. Outcomes Based Framework for Rochdale Borough

1.1

1.2

 

1.3

What is requested from Board:

Following on from a presentation and discussion at a previous board, Board is now 
asked to consider and formally approve the adoption of outcomes based commissioning 
and accountability in Rochdale, and to support this move, approve (in principle) the ten 
strategic outcomes set out below. 

To achieve our key health and social care outcomes for Rochdale Borough we need a 
clear approach that helps us work together for the benefit of residents. This paper 
describes an approach we can use, starting by setting out a set of ten strategic 
outcomes.  These have been derived from our strategy documents and through recent 
workshops with senior leaders from across our system. They are written in language 
which is most likely to have meaning for our residents. Importantly they reflect the 
interdependency between the determinants of health although it is anticipated that 
Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) will focus on those that have a particular 
relevance to Health and Social Care Integration and Transformation (particularly 1-6).

These outcomes are described more fully within our Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
and feature recurrently in whole or part throughout our plans, strategies and proposals 
for improving the lives of Rochdale Borough residents. They will be reviewed 
continuously to ensure that they continue to fit with what is right for our borough.  

The Ten proposed strategic outcomes for Rochdale Borough are:

1. All residents feel healthy and remain in good state of health for as long as 
possible.

2. All residents are protected from harm, through support in times of need and by 
safeguarding and protecting those who are vulnerable.

3. All residents have good mental wellbeing, are resilient, enjoy life, and are able to 
cope with life’s challenges.

4. All children are healthy and ready to succeed when they start school and all 
children and young adults achieve their potential. 

5. All residents have the opportunities they need to enable them to help themselves, 
their loved ones and their communities to achieve their full potential. 

6. The borough is a place where people age well, can live with dignity and have 
equitable access to services and opportunities.

7. The borough is safe, resilient, and clean and has good quality places where 
people choose to live, work and invest.

8. The borough has thriving growing businesses and new enterprises and creates 
the conditions for high skill levels and high quality jobs. 

9. The borough has sound finances and is able to provide services to meet 
resident’s needs now and in the future.

10.The borough is friendly, fair and co-operative.  

These strategic outcomes are about our people and our place and bring us to a joint 

Page 9



Page 3 of 6

1.4

1.5

understanding of what we are trying to achieve. Each outcome may seem to sit 
independently from other outcomes, however we know that what works in achieving 
long-term health, wealth and resilience across populations are approaches that 
consider these as interdependent outcomes.

A key first step in our approach to achieving these outcomes includes having agreed 
common understandings about what success looks like; i.e. to picture or imagine what it 
would be like if an outcome was being achieved. For example, if all children are healthy 
and ready to succeed when they start school we imagine happy contented children who 
feel loved and cared about and who easily make friends. We see children who live in 
good homes, have clean safe places to play, breathe clean air and are protected from 
diseases and accidents. We can imagine measuring basic things like their teeth, weight 
and readiness to start school and find that they are doing well. 

Our shared understanding of what success looks like can thus be converted into agreed 
measures of success. What success looks like is often a matter for debate, we 
therefore need a collective approach to prioritising different ways to achieve outcomes 
and choose those we think are the best ones. This choice is crucial as resources are 
limited and without it we spread ourselves too thinly leading to a lack of progress. 

1.6 In brief this approach will therefore assist us to 

i) choose ways to make progress; i.e. the best ways of making an impact

ii) have joined up decisions that describe our relative contributions

iii) decide how we will measure if progress is happening

Expected progress and actions must be realistic, focus on system sustainability, and 
how we can support individuals to maximise their own potential through self-
development and self-help.

2.0 Pathways to progress and Indicators 

2.1

2.2

2.3

We want to make progress towards achieving borough outcomes hence the proposed 
approach is to transparently choose a set of pathways that we think logically must take 
us in the right direction and then use indicators to measure progress. OneRochdale 
Health and Social Care (LCO) have, together with commissioners, started to pull out 
what some elements of these pathways might be as part of the ‘Black Hat’ process. 

The pathways or routes to progress we choose will have their own outcomes which are 
held together in a framework. These outcomes are then measured. The chosen 
pathways to progress need to have an understandable easily told story about how they 
work. Appendix 1 has an example of a framework.

The proposed solution is thus to have a small number of agreed pathways to follow and 

Page 10



Page 4 of 6

indicators and outcomes that fit together. The indicators of progress need to be 
measurable, timely, accurate and robust and where we cannot directly measure these 
then proxy measures will be selected. 

2.4 Our local measures will be taken from routinely collected data or they may be the same 
as Greater Manchester indicators. However, in picking indicators we will avoid only 
choosing indicators that are easily measurable or only things we are already doing and 
measuring. 

3.0 Our Aspirations - what we want to achieve

3.1

 

Once an indicator for progress along a pathway is agreed we want to set a target for 
improvement. To set this target we need an understanding of the past trajectory and 
some understanding of our possible impact. 

3.2 The scale of the opportunity for how we achieve our improvement targets steers the 
partnerships approach to what we need to do to make change and the extent to which a 
single intervention is likely to be impactful. Few of our outcomes are the responsibility of 
one agency (or could hang on a single intervention) and it is likely that a pathway will 
require multi component interventions that require dispersed accountabilities. 

4.0 Performance measures for services

4.1

4.2

Unnecessary service monitoring will be avoided, instead many services will remain as 
they are, until or unless there is an issue so we can concentrate efforts on a small 
number of pathways to improvement.

Service outcomes should fit with achievement of a wider outcome and be SMART -  
specific, measurable, achievable, realistic, and time bound. It should be achievable and 
‘stretch' the provider yet not be out of reach 

5.0 Using stories to help us to check our progress. 

5.1

5.2

The change we are making is away from outputs from individual services toward a 
focus on achievement of outcomes. These outcomes will be held together in 
frameworks. 

Local frameworks will cover people, place and organisations. Each framework will be 
linked directly to a measurable strategic indicator and a Borough outcome.  The 
outcomes and indicators in the framework are linked to actions and activity and will fit 
together in a logical way to achieve progress towards achieving a Borough Outcome 
and as such ‘tell a story’.

The outcomes and indicators in a framework are a tool that ICB may wish to scrutinise 
alongside our story of how we intend to achieve progress. 

Page 11



Page 5 of 6

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Summary and Conclusion

Our intention is to establish a transparent accountable system for making progress 
towards our Strategic Borough Outcomes. This includes having a clear story and 
agreed pathways about how progress is going to be made which can be scrutinised by 
ICB. 

Many different routes to progress can be chosen and we will deliberately pick a small 
number for each Borough Outcome to concentrate upon. These will be informed and 
justified by a story of how we think progress can best be made. This includes our local 
causal understanding of issues and attempts to identify the most important ways to 
make progress. To monitor progress along chosen pathways indicators will be used. 
The indicators measure sub-outcomes that fit together in a logical way so that if a target 
is achieved then it is plausible that progress will be made.

The pathways and their indicators are held together in local outcomes frameworks that 
are linked directly to achieving Borough Outcomes. These frameworks are the 
pathways we have chosen to prioritise and the indicators and sub-outcomes that need 
to be achieved to make progress. 

At Board meetings when progress is reviewed the underpinning story is also looked at. 
This provides context and allows relevant discussion of why something may or may not 
be working well. It also allows consideration of how things can best be joined together 
to increase impact. 

The approach acknowledges that we have to deliver many services to high standards 
but focuses effort on some key outcomes. The approach deliberately by-passes much 
of the complexity to focus on a small number of sub-outcomes that if achieved must 
lead to progress. 

These sub-outcomes are then described as pathways in our local outcomes 
frameworks. The pathways are understood using a story which describes what we want 
to do and who is accountable for achieving what. There will only be a limited number of 
prioritised pathways which will not cover all services or contracts. 

If Board are in agreement to this approach we intend to share progress on key 
outcomes of interest at the request of Board commencing April 2019.

Page 12



Page 6 of 6

Appendix 1. Example Framework: Reducing the impact of cancer for adult residents

What is the main Borough Outcome for 
this framework? 

All residents feel healthy and remain in good state of health 
for as long as possible.
Healthy life expectancy to increase from 58.7 years for 
woman and 57.8 for men to above 60 years in all residents  
Reducing preventable premature mortality so that the 
directly standardised mortality rate per 100,000 in people 
under 75 falls from 451 to 400.

What are the main indicators of 
progress for the Borough Outcome?

Increasing the proportion of residents that are satisfied with 
their life so that the proportion scoring low on the national 
wellbeing survey falls from 7.1% to less than 5%. 

What is this framework about? Reducing the impact of cancer for adult residents
Reduction in mortality from all cancers in people under 75What are the main indicators for 

reducing the impact of cancer? A decrease in the proportion of lung, breast, bowel and 
cervical cancers diagnosed at an advanced stage

The Framework 
Story

Cancer is a leading cause of early death and disability in Rochdale Borough. The 
impact is greatest in the poorest groups.  Improvements in diet, more physical activity 
and reducing alcohol can prevent the onset of some cancers but stopping smoking is 
most important. For the most common cancers early diagnosis produces better 
outcomes. If treatments for all patients follow national guidance outcomes are better. 
We can improve local outcomes from cancer by getting more people to go to cancer 
screening, by reducing the prevalence of tobacco smoking and by ensuring treatments 
match up with best practice.  

Pathway One Increase the uptake of breast, bowel and cervical cancer screening
Pathway Two Reduce the prevalence of smoking especially in adults over 40
Pathway Three Increase the proportion of new cancer patients that receive on time all diagnostic 

tests and access to treatment options  as recommended by NICE 
What is the 
main indicator 
for pathway one

An increase in the uptake of breast, bowel and cervical screening in eligible residents. 

What is 
pathway one’s 
indicator story

Currently uptake of cancer screening is low in some groups and overall uptake has in 
general fallen over recent years, increasing uptake increases the diagnosis of small 
cancers. Ways to increase uptake are known, relevant partners include GPs, screening 
offices, CCG, community workers, residents and pharmacists. Issues can be practical 
including transport and suitable appointments or can be about winning over hearts 
and minds.

A) GP practices to increase uptake of cancer screening in line with the Core+2 
targets for screening

B) CCG to work with HealthWatch to identify ways and support five GP practices 
increase their uptake of cancer screening  during the next 12 months

Service 
performance 
targets for 
pathway 1

C) Community connectors service to encourage in the next 12 months 500 
eligible people who may not use cancer screening to take up the service offer 

What is the 
story behind 
service 
performance 
targets

We want to encourage joint working to try and increase cancer screening uptake. The 
GP practices already have agreed stretch targets which can be reported and 
monitored. The CCG can be accountable for working to support at least five GP 
practices increase uptake. Innovative ways can be encouraged and their roll out and 
impact reported. The direct impact of community work to increase screening is hard 
to attribute and a simple measure of contacts provides assurance that the issue is 
being talked about and promoted.

The framework would then continue with Pathway 2 and Pathway 3.

Page 13



Health and Wellbeing Board

8th January

Outcomes Frameworks

How they can be used to improve practice

Public Health and Wellbeing Service

P
age 14



1. All residents feel healthy and remain in good state of health for as long as 
possible.

2. All residents are protected from harm, through support in times of need and 
safeguarding and protecting those who are vulnerable.

3. All residents have good mental wellbeing, are resilient, enjoy life, and are able 
to cope with life’s challenges.

4. All children are healthy and ready to succeed when they start school and all 
children and young adults achieve their potential. 

5. All residents have the opportunities they need to enable them to help 
themselves, their loved ones and their communities to achieve their full 
potential. 

6. The borough is a place where people age well, can live with dignity and have 
equitable access to services and opportunities.

7. The borough is safe, resilient, and clean and has good quality places where 
people choose to live, work and invest.

8. The borough has thriving growing businesses and new enterprises and creates 
the conditions for high skill levels and high quality jobs. 

9. The borough has sound finances and is able to provide services to meet 
resident’s needs now and in the future.

10. The borough is friendly, fair and co-operative. 

Borough Outcomes

P
age 15



Understanding our  Borough Outcomes

Ten Strategic Borough Outcomes

• Each Borough Outcome is an ambitious goal that you want to 

make progress towards

• Broad progress can be measured using outcome indicators 

• Target for outcome indicators can be set and reviewed

• The aim is to make small incremental progress

• Because the strategic outcomes are broad and influenced by 

many factors progress is likely to be small,  will vary by 

chance and cannot usually be attributed to one service or 

intervention

P
age 16



Local Outcomes Framework

• Our local outcomes frameworks are simply a way of capturing 

what we want to do to make progress in a particular area. 

• They are not the full list of all activity that is linked to or helps 

produce an outcome. 

• A local outcomes framework has indicators, targets and 

outcome measures that we intend to monitor and report on 

locally. 

• Progress can be scrutinised by individuals, managers, and 

Boards. Each framework also has a narrative which is the story 

of how we think we can make progress. 

P
age 17



Story of Progress

• The story is crucial - it describes how we want to make 

progress towards achieving a Borough Outcome

• The narrative can describe what we can do locally, what must 

logically make an improvement, who is responsible or 

accountable for an improvement and which partners are 

needed.

• The story is informed by our JSNA, best practice, practicality, 

theoretical understanding and local understanding.

• There is no correct story or way to achieve progress, it is a 

matter for local judgement, but a narrative that explains why 

we are doing something and how things fit together helps to 

make progress more likely 

P
age 18



Importance of Measurement and Scrutiny

"If you can't measure it, you can't improve it.“

Peter Drucker leading management consultant 

• Measures of progress are reviewed by Boards and Managers

• They begin at the top with a strategic indicator

• The story of progress then guides what is prioritised and 

measured.

• The measures fit together in a logical sensible narrative so 

that if one improves the one above is likely to also  improve 

e.g. attendance at cancer screening increases – stage at 

diagnosis across population improves – mortality from that 

cancer falls slightly. 

P
age 19



Example How we can make progress  - Children being school ready

Borough 

Outcome children 

school ready

Path 1 – Early 

years education

Improving early 

years providers 

Helping families 

find local early 

years support

Path 2 – mothers 

reading to 

children

Library service

Measures

Story – This is about the ways we want to improve school 

readiness in which groups and how. Here we have decided 

early years and reading to children is important.

• Borough statistics on proportion of 

children school ready in reception 

year

• Bespoke survey of mothers 

reading to under 5s

• Ofsted reports of local early 

years 

• Specific service 

targets e.g. increase 

in mother and 

toddler reading 

groups.

P
age 20



How the local frameworks approach can help

• Underpin a  shared understanding of how progress in 

different areas will be made

• Allow for structured discussion and challenge about 

the best ways to make progress in a particular area

• Support the prioritisation of resource allocation

• Help link together governance structures  around an 

auditable measurement and improvement cycle 

P
age 21



A Learning process

An outcomes framework approach with narratives and 

transparent indicators and measurement helps support 

learning and understanding of:

• Outcome measures and their limitations

• Concise description of actions

• Complex interconnectedness 

• Using evidence and best practice to achieve wanted 

outcomes

• Use of local understanding including qualitative data, views 

and  neighbourhood knowledge about what will work best 

P
age 22



Next steps

The Board are asked to support:

1. Using the local outcomes framework approach as a 

tool for prioritising and measuring progress and a 

way to help structure Board meetings and 

discussions 

2. The development of tools and workshops to help 

colleagues understand the approach and gain skills 

in key areas

3. Making the Borough Outcomes more widely known 

P
age 23


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Outcome Paper
	Agenda Item 4b - Health and Wellbeing Jan 8th slides outcome frameworks


